JAMES P. SCANLAN
1527 30th Street, N.W., Apt. B-2
Washington, D.C. 20007
(202) 337-3927

Novenber 9, 1998

H Marshall Jarrett, Esq.

Counsel

O fice of Professional Responsibility
United States Departnent of Justice
10th Street & Constitution Ave., N W
Washi ngton, D.C. 20530

Re: Request for Investigation Into the Handling by
Departnment of Justice Oficials of Allegations of
Prosecutorial M sconduct by the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel Arlin M Adanms in the
Prosecution of United States of Anerica v. Deborah
Gore Dean, Criminal No. 92-181-TFH (D.D. C.)

Dear M. Jarrett:

By letter dated August 3, 1998, | provided certain materials
to Lee J. Radek, Chief of the Public Integrity Section of the
Departnment of Justice's Crimnal Division, concerning the actions
of I ndependent Counsel attorneys in the prosecution of United
States of Anmerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-181-TFH
(D.D.C.). Inthe transmttal letter, | advised Ms. Radek that
information in the materials suggested that Robert J. Meyer, an
attorney in the Public Integrity Section, was unfit to represent
the United States and that he nmay be party to a continuing
conspiracy to obstruct justice as a result of his role in
decei ving the courts concerni ng whether certain governnment
Wi tnesses had commtted perjury in the case. By letter dated
August 20, 1998, Ms. Radek advised ne that she had referred ny
letter and the attached materials to the Ofice of Professional
Responsi bility.

As indicated in ny letter to Ms. Radek, the matters
addressed in the letter had been brought to the attention of
M chael R Bromwi ch, Inspector General for the Departnent of
Justice, by letter dated Decenber 23, 1997 (Attachnent 1 to ny
letter to Ms. Radek). In the letter to M. Bromm ch | requested
that he investigate whether Departnent of Justice officials had
previously failed to treat ny allegations of prosecutorial
m sconduct in good faith out of concern that an investigation
woul d reveal that certain |ndependent Counsel attorneys who went
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on to hold high positions in the Departnment of Justice, including
Assi stant Attorney General for the Crimnal D vision, had
violated federal |aws through their actions in the Dean case. By
letter of January 14, 1998 (Attachnent 2 to the letter to Ms.
Radek), | provided the Attorney Ceneral a copy of the Decenber

23, 1997 letter to M. BromM ch, requesting in the letter to the
Attorney General that the Departnment of Justice again exam ne the
conduct of the O fice of |Independent Counsel in the Dean case. |
requested that the Attorney General do so both because Depart nent
officials did not previously consider the matter in good faith
and because devel opnents subsequent to the Departnent's | ast
communi cation to nme on the matter provi ded i ndependent
justification for reconsideration of the Departnent's earlier
determ nation that no action by the Departnent was warranted. By
letter dated March 2, 1998 (Attachnent 3 to the letter to Ms.
Radek), | provided the Attorney General additional infornmation
concerni ng that request.

As also indicated in the letter to Ms. Radek, by letter
dated April 8, 1998 (Attachnent 4 to the letter to Ms. Radek),
I nspector Ceneral Bromm ch advised ne that he could not address
the issues raised in ny Decenber 23, 1997 letter to hi mbecause,
by Attorney General order, the Ofice of Inspector General did
not have jurisdiction to investigate matters concerning
Departnment of Justice attorneys' exercise of their authority to
investigate, litigate, or provide |egal advice. Subsequently, by
letter dated May 4, 1998 (Attachnent 5), M. Bromw ch advised ne
that ny correspondence to the Attorney Ceneral had been forwarded
to himfor response. Referencing his letter to ne dated April 8,
1998, M. Bromwi ch advised ne that the Inspector Ceneral did not
have jurisdiction to address the issues raised in ny
correspondence to the Attorney General.

By letter to the Attorney General and to M. Bromwm ch dated
June 17, 1998 (Attachnment 6 to the letter to Ms. Radek), |
requested clarification of whether the Attorney CGeneral had in
fact intended to refer the natter addressed in ny earlier letters
to a division of the Departnent of Justice that did not have
jurisdiction over the matter. Pointing out that it was an
unusual thing for the head of an agency having jurisdiction over
a matter to refer the matter to a division within the agency that
did not have jurisdiction, | suggested that if such had been the
Attorney General's intention, she reconsider the appropriateness
of such course and instead refer the matter to a division of the
department that does have jurisdiction. 1 have not yet received
a response to the June 17, 1998 letter to the Attorney General
and M. Brom ch.
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In light of the absence of a response fromthe Attorney
CGeneral, | formally request that the Ofice of Professional
Responsi bility investigate whether the Departnment of Justice
previously investigated the allegations | brought to its
attention in good faith. | request that in doing so the Ofice
of Professional Responsibility determ ne whether Departnent of
Justice officials attenpted to conceal what they recognized to be
crimnal conduct by Jo Ann Harris and other |ndependent Counsel
attorneys in the prosecution of the Dean case.

My letter to M. Brommich, along with nmy letters to the
Attorney General in January and March, sumrarize two areas where
there is reason to believe that |Independent Counsel attorneys
viol ated federal law. The first of these involves actions of
I ndependent Counsel attorneys with respect to the testinony of
Supervi sory Special Agent Alvin R Cain, Jr. Agent Cain is the
i ndi vidual the Ofice of Independent Counsel called as a rebuttal
wi tness to contradi ct Deborah Gore Dean's testinony that she had
called Agent Cain in April 1989 to ask whether there existed a
check showi ng a $75, 000 paynent to John N. Mtchell concerning a
Dade County, Florida noderate rehabilitation project called
Arama. Though I ndependent Counsel attorneys knew that Dean had
made the call to Agent Cain, they elicited testinony from Cain
designed to lead the jury to believe that the call never
occurred. \When information was brought to the court's attention
t hat appeared to show that Dean had nade the call, |ndependent
Counsel attorneys decided not to advise the court of such
rationale as they m ght have had by which Cain's testinony was
literally true even though he renenbered the call from Dean.
Rather, in seeking to uphold the verdict, in seeking to increase
Dean's sentencing |level on the basis that she |ied about the cal
to Cain, and in resisting discovery into whether Cain commtted
perjury with knowl edge of | ndependent Counsel attorneys,

I ndependent Counsel attorneys sought to lead the court falsely to
believe that Cain's testinmony showed that Dean had fabricated the
story about the call. In the letter to M. Bromm ch, | explained
why, whether or not |ndependent Counsel attorneys conmtted any
crime in the initial use of Cain's testinony, |Independent Counsel
attorneys involved in attenpting to deceive the court concerning
Cain's testinobny in post-trial proceedings engaged in a
conspiracy to obstruct justice at |least with respect to deceiving
the court in resisting discovery into whether Cain commtted
perjury. Anmong the persons involved in this conspiracy were
Bruce C. Swartz (until recently Counsel to the Assistant Attorney
CGeneral for the Crimnal Division), Claudia J. Flynn (until
recently Chief of Staff to the Assistant Attorney General for the
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Crimnal Division), and Robert J. Meyer (the attorney in the
Public Integrity Section who is the subject of ny letter to M.
Radek) .

The second principal matter sunmarized in ny letter to M.
Bromwi ch invol ves actions of |ndependent Counsel attorneys in
making a false entry in the Superseding Indictnment in the Dean
case regarding Louie B. Nunn's annotation on the Aranma consul t ant
agreenent to the effect that one-half of the $150, 000 consultant
fee belonged to John Mtchell. 1In order to support that false
entry, and to lead the court and the jury falsely to believe that
Arama devel oper Aristides Martinez was aware of Nunn's annotation
and knew that Mtchell was to receive half the consultant fee,

I ndependent Counsel attorneys introduced Governnment Exhibits 20
and 25 into evidence while representing themto be things they
were not. By doing so, whether or not they obstructed justice,

| ndependent Counsel attorneys violated 18 U.S.C. § 1001.' One of
the principal actors in this matter is Jo Ann Harris, who was the
lead trial counsel at the tinme the false entry was nade in the
Supersedi ng I ndictnment and who was Assistant Attorney Ceneral for
the Grimnal Division at the tinme | brought these matters to the
attentionzof the Attorney General and \Wite House Counsel Abner

J. M kva.

! The false representations Independent Counsel attorneys made concerning
these documents violated 18 U.S.C. § 1001 not because they were made to a court, but
because they involved matters within the jurisdiction of a department or agency of the
United States, namely the Office of Independent Counsel. See United States of
America v, Deborah Gore Dean, 55 F.3d 640, 659 n.10 (D.C. Cir. 1995). | have yet to
receive a response to the parts of my November 24, 1997 Freedom of Information Act
request to the Department of Justice directed to determining whether the Department of
Justice considers it a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 for a federal government attorney to
introduce a document into evidence, and to make false representations concerning the
document, with the intent of leading the court or jury to believe the document to be
something it is not.

2 initially brought these issues to the attention of the Attorney General on
December 1, 1994, supplementing the materials on January 17, 1995. By letter dated
February 9, 1995, | brought the same matters to Judge Mikva's attention in connection
with a request that Judge Mikva recommend that the President remove Ms. Harris from
the position of Assistant Attorney General for the Criminal Division. By letter dated
March 8, 1995, Judge Mikva advised me that he was forwarding the materials | had
provided him to the Deputy Attorney General.
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The material provided to Ms. Radek and forwarded to you
shoul d provi de adequate information for you to determ ne that
Departnment of Justice officials endeavored to conceal the nature
of the conduct of Ms. Harris and other |ndependent Counsel
attorneys. The materials also should provide you sufficient
information to conclude that letters M. Shaheen wote to nme in
June 1995 and January 1996 were intended to m sl ead ne concerning
t he concl usi ons the Departnent had reached regardi ng ny
all egations. Certain additional matters warrant nention,
however, because they may cast additional |ight on the conduct of
Departnment of Justice officials in this matter.

First, one possible interpretation of the Departnent of
Justice's actions is that a cursory review of the materials I
provided the Attorney Ceneral |ed Departnent officials to
conclude that there was a substantial |ikelihood that Ms. Harris
had engaged in serious prosecutorial abuses that may have
i nvol ved violation of federal law. Departnent officials
t herefore decided that, rather than thoroughly investigate the
al l egations or take such actions as the Departnent would take on
such a matter were a high-ranking Departnent of Justice officia
not involved, the Departnent would allow Ms. Harris to quietly
resign. At the tinme of witing ny letter to M. Bromwi ch, | knew
only that Ms. Harris's resignation was announced in the press on
May 19, 1995, which was two days after | delivered a letter to
Wi te House Counsel Abner J. Mkva inquiring why Ms. Harris
continued to serve as Assistant Attorney General nore than six
nonths after | had brought the m sconduct allegations to the
attention of the Attorney General and nore than three nonths
after | had specifically sought the renoval of Ms. Harris in a
letter to Judge Mkva. | also knew that the press account of the
announcenent of Ms. Harris's resignation indicated that on
assum ng the position of Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Ms. Harris
had advi sed the Attorney CGeneral that she (Ms. Harris) would
serve only two years. |If it was true that Ms. Harris had advi sed
the Attorney Ceneral that she would serve only two years when she
accepted the position of Assistant Attorney General, that would
tend to suggest that Ms. Harris's seem ngly abrupt resignation in
May 1995 was not a occasioned by ny bringing to the attention of
t he Departnment of Justice and the VWite House information
suggesting that Ms. Harris had violated federal |aws through her
actions in the prosecution of the Dean case.

Accordingly, in addition to seeking all Departnent of
Justice comuni cations to the press concerning Ms. Harris, ny
Freedom of Information Act request of Novenber 24, 1997, sought a
copy of Ms. Harris's resignation letter and all records
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reflecting or relating to Ms. Harris's advising the Attorney
CGeneral near the commencenent of Ms. Harris's assumng the
position of Assistant Attorney General that she intended to serve
only two years. To aid the Departnent in its search, | cited,
and attached, the May 19, 1995 Washi ngton Post article reporting
t he announcenent of Ms. Harris's resignation.

As of July 7, 1998, | had received no responsive docunents
to such requests fromany of the several divisions of the
Departnment of Justice to which the requests had been referred.

By letter of that date, Margaret Ann Irving, Deputy Director of
the Ofice of Information and Privacy, advised ne that the Ofice
of Public Affairs had represented that it could |l ocate no records
of comruni cations to the press concerning Ms. Harris.

Shortly thereafter, however, | found on the part of the
Departnment of Justice's web site nmaintained by the Ofice of
Public Affairs a copy of the press release formng the basis for
the May 19, 1995 Washington Post article that reported M.
Harris's resignation. The press release on the web site
referenced Ms. Harris's resignation |etter, which had been
attached to the rel ease when issued and whi ch presumably renai ned
attached to it in Ofice of Public Affairs files as well as in
other files in the Departnment of Justice. The press release also
suggested that the resignation letter was the source of the claim
that Ivs. Harris had advised the Attorney Ceneral at the
commencenent of her (Ms. Harris's) tenure that she would serve
only two years. And the press release indicated that the
resignation letter had referenced the fact that Ms. Harris had
informed the Attorney General in March 1995 of her intention to
resign. Thus, on the basis of docunent that the Departnent of
Justice did have but that it represented to ne it did not have, |
now know that Ms. Harris's decision to resign canme one nonth
after | sought her renoval by letter to Wite House Counsel Abner
J. Mkva and in the same nonth that Judge M kva advi sed ne that
he was referring the matter to the Departnent of Justice.

By letter to Ms. Irving dated August 17, 1998 (Attachnent
1), | requested that she determ ne how the Ofice of Public
Affairs could fail to locate the press rel ease concerning Ms.
Harris's resignation, when the docunent was mai ntai ned on the
part of the Departnent's web site maintained by that office. |
al so requested that Ms. Irving determ ne whether Ms. Harris's
resignation letter in fact exists within the Ofice of Public
Affairs and, if so, that Ms. Irving provide ne a copy as soon as
possible. | have yet to receive a response concerning this
matter, and, though it is now two weeks short of a year since |
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requested a copy of Ms. Harris's resignation letter, the
Departnent has yet to provide it.?

3 Among the other documents requested in my Freedom of Information Act
request of November 24, 1997, that it would seem the Department of Justice could
readily locate is an August 24, 1994 memorandum from Attorney General Janet Reno
that was distributed to assistant attorneys general and United States Attorneys. The
memorandum had been referenced in Klaidman, "Prosecutorial Abuse Target of Reno
Plan," Legal Times, Sept. 12, 1994, and | had enclosed a copy of that article to assist
the Department in locating the memorandum. In mid-December 1997, | was advised by
Stuart Frisch, General Counsel of the Justice Management Division, that, while the
Justice Management Division might have a copy of the memorandum (which had been
widely distributed), the document could be more easily located in other offices within the
Department. Accordingly, | advised Mr. Frisch that his office did not have to attempt to
locate the document. As of this date, however, | have not been provided a copy of the
document by any other office. For its part, the Criminal Division leads me to
understand that it does not have a copy of this document.
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Second, it is ny recollection that either in nmy neeting with
Associ ate Deputy Attorney CGeneral David Margolis during the week
of Decenber 12, 1994, or in subsequent tel ephone conversations,
M. Margolis stated that the naterials |I provided to the Attorney
General would eventually be forwarded to the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel. | amin the process of confirmng that
recollection with M. Margolis. |In any case, one woul d expect
t he Departnent of Justice, upon concluding that ny allegations
did not justify Departnent of Justice action, would refer the
materials to the Ofice of |Independent Counsel for the
I ndependent Counsel to determ ne whether any convictions were
tai nted by m sconduct and whether the conduct of any | ndependent
Counsel attorneys warranted the disciplining or prosecution of
the attorneys.*

One woul d expect the Departnment to do this even if the

Departnment had concluded that the allegations were insubstantial.

Here, however, the court itself had recogni zed that serious
prosecutorial abuses had been commtted. And, at a mninmm I
had alerted the Departnent of Justice to additional nmatters not
addressed in the district court or court of appeals, including
the use of false evidence (anong other things, in the case of the
Arama consul tant agreenent in Government Exhibit 25). It should
al so be noted that in his letter to ne of June 28, 1995, M
Shaheen justified the Departnent's failure to take action in part
on the basis that the offendi ng | ndependent Counsel attorneys had
left the Ofice of |Independent Counsel.

In these circunstances, the question arises as to how the
Departnment of Justice could fail to refer nmy allegations to the
O fice of Independent Counsel for the Independent Counsel to take
such actions as he deened warranted. The failure of the
Departnent to refer the allegations to the I ndependent Counsel
was irresponsible in any event. But it should al so be borne in
mnd that by the tinme the Departnent of Justice reached its
decision to take no action, Arlin M Adans had resigned as

* This in fact is what the Office of Professional Responsibility eventually did with

allegations made by a former employee of the Office of Independent Counsel in
November 1996. See my letter to Mr. Bromwich at 62-67.
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I ndependent Counsel, and was shortly to be replaced by Larry D.
Thonpson. M. Thonpson was a person who there was no reason to
believe was involved with any of the matters addressed in the
materials |I provided the Departnment. Thus, there was additiona
reason to believe that the Ofice of Independent Counsel m ght
itself address any issues of serious prosecutorial msconduct by
its attorneys. There was also reason to believe that M.
Thonpson hinself did not even know that the O fice of |Independent
Counsel was continuing to rely on exhibits that were not what

I ndependent Counsel attorneys had represented themto be.

One possi ble reason that the Departnent of Justice did not
refer the materials to M. Thonpson may well relate to the fact
that there was no reason to believe M. Thonpson was involved in
t he m sconduct of his predecessors. Conpetent Department of
Justice officials could not have failed to conclude that M.
Harris was involved in a schene to use fal se docunents to support
a false entry in the Superceding Indictnment. Departnent
officials also had to conclude that Ms. Harris was directly
involved in a variety of other abuses, including the cal cul ated
failure to make tinmely Brady disclosures and the systematic
failure to confront government witnesses with information that
m ght cause themto disclose that their contenpl ated testinony
was false. And whether or not Ms. Harris could be deened by any
theory to be involved in obstruction of justice or suborning of
perjury through the use Agent Cain's testinony and the subsequent
deceiving of the court in resisting discovery, other Departnent
of Justice attorneys were involved in those actions. Thus, a
reason that the Departnent of Justice did not refer these
all egations to M. Thonpson nay well have invol ved the fact that
M. Thonpson might hinself have taken actions that would reveal
the nature of the conduct of Departnent of Justice officials
whil e serving as | ndependent Counsel attorneys.

In any event, | suggest that you consider the two matters
addr essed above as you evaluate the allegations in the materials
| provided Ms. Radek. Be m ndful, however, that even if the
above suggestions concerning notivations of Departnment of Justice
of ficials are unfounded, you nust still confront the fact that Jo
Ann Harris conspired with other persons, including Bruce C
Swartz, to make a false entry in an indictnent and to fal sely use
certain docunents (and nmake fal se representati ons concerning
t hose docunents) to support the false entry in the indictnent.
That conspiracy continued, and Ms. Harris remained part of it,
whil e she served as Assistant Attorney General for the Crininal
Di vision. You nust also confront the fact that Bruce C. Swartz,
Claudia J. Flynn, Robert J. Meyer, and other persons conspired to
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deceive a court in resisting discovery into whether a governnent
agent had conmitted perjury.?

You nust al so confront the fact that, assuni ng m ninmal
conpetence on the part of Departnent of Justice officials
reviewi ng the materials |I brought to the Attorney Ceneral's
attention al nost four years ago, these facts were known to

> Department of Justice officials had also to recognize that Thomas T. Demery
had committed perjury in the Dean case and that Robert J. Meyer and Bruce C. Swartz
had attempted to deceive the court in the Dean case concerning both whether Demery
had testified falsely and whether Independent Counsel attorneys knew that he had. In
light of the effort by Mr. Swartz and Mr. Meyer to deceive the court in the Dean case,
Department officials had strong reason to believe that, particularly if the Department of
Justice took no action, Independent Counsel attorneys would eventually falsely
represent to the court in Demery's own case that Demery had given completely truthful
testimony in the Dean case. As discussed in my letter to Mr. Bromwich, subsequent to
the Department of Justice's refusal to take action, in February 1996, Independent
Counsel attorneys in fact would make such false representations to the court in
Demery's case. By making those false representations, Independent Counsel attorneys
violated 18 U.S.C. § 1001. Assuming that he in fact carefully reviewed my allegations
concerning Mr. Demery, Mr. Shaheen cannot plausibly deny either that he expected
that Independent Counsel attorneys would eventually deceive the court in Demery's
own case or that he (Mr. Shaheen) attempted to mislead me with regard to the
Department's conclusions concerning Independent Counsel conduct related to Demery.
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Departnent officials at the tinme that M. Shaheen wote ne on
June 28, 1995, advising that the Departnent had decided to take
no action. And, | suggest, you nust conclude that in so advising
me, M. Shaheen nade di shonest and m sl eadi ng statenents
concerning the Departnent's conclusions. Wether or not the sole
pur pose of responding to nme in the manner M. Shaheen did was to
justify to the best extent possible the Departnent's decision to
take no action, the expected effect of his statenents, if anyone
believed them was to facilitate the conceal nent of conduct by
Departnment of Justice that M. Shaheen had to have concl uded was
at | east arguably crimnal.

Thus, even if the Departnment was not notivated by a desire
to conceal the fact that Jo Ann Harris and ot her Departnent of
Justice officials had violated federal |aws while serving as
I ndependent Counsel attorneys, the actions of M. Shaheen and
ot her Departnment officials may have violated federal laws. |If
those actions were in fact notivated by a desire to conceal the
conduct of Ms. Harris and others, the actions alnost certainly
viol ated federal |aws.

As you review these materials and consider an appropriate
course of action, | suggest that you consider the followng. It
is now al nost four years since | brought these matters to the
attention of the Attorney General. There is now new | eadership
in the Ofice of Professional Responsibility. That fact is one
of the reasons why the Departnment of Justice may resist the
effort to renove fromthe Departnent the function of overseeing
the conduct of its own prosecutors.?®

® | have previously suggested to the principal proponents of such legislation that
the Department's handling of the allegations against Ms. Harris and others involved in
the prosecution of the Dean case provides reason to question whether institutionally the
Department has a sufficiently refined understanding of a government lawyer's
obligations regarding the truth to provide the necessary oversight of federal
prosecutors. That suggestion holds, moreover, regardless of whether my interpretation
of the facts or the motivations of Department officials proves to be accurate. In that
regard, consider the fact of Associate Deputy Attorney General David Margolis's posing
to me in December 1994 the question of whether | had considered the possibility that
Agent Cain's testimony might be literally true even though Dean had in fact called Agent
Cain to ask about a check showing the payment to Mitchell. As discussed in my August
5, 1998 letter to Congressmen Joseph M. McDade and John P. Murtha (Attachment 2),
the very posing of that question implies a condoning of the efforts of Bruce C. Swartz
and Robert J. Meyer to deceive the court in resisting discovery into whether Agent Cain
committed perjury.
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But unl ess you responsi bly address these issues, you can
expect that four or eight years fromnow, as the Departnent of
Justice attenpts to maintain, or regain, its prerogatives
concerning the oversight of federal prosecutors, it will have to
defend the manner in which it addressed allegations that the
Assi stant Attorney Ceneral for the Crimnal Division, and other
hi gh-ranki ng Departnent officials, had violated federal |aws
whil e acting as federal prosecutors.

Your inmmedi ate tasks, however, are relatively sinple. You
nmust determ ne whether, as | have maintai ned, the consultant
agreenent in Governnment Exhibit 25 is not what the |Independent
Counsel represented it to be.” You nust deternine whether, in
resisting discovery into whether Supervisory Special Agent A vin
R Cain, Jr. commtted perjury in the Dean case, Bruce C. Swartz,
Robert E. O Neill, and Claudia J. Flynn attenpted to deceive the
court. And you nust determ ne whether Bruce C. Swartz and Robert
J. Meyer attenpted to deceive the court with regard to whet her
Thomas T. Denery gave false testinony in the Dean case.
suggest that none of these issues is one about which reasonabl e
peopl e m ght differ.

After you have nade those determ nati ons, you nust attenpt
to sort out how the Departnment cane to previously handle ny
all egations in the manner it did and to determ ne whether there
was any effort on the part of Departnment officials to deceive ne
when the Departnent responded to ne on the matter, and, if so,
whet her by doing so those officials violated federal | aws.

Unl ess you are willing to pursue each of these inquiries
vi gorously and wi thout regard for who m ght be shown to be at
fault, | suggest that your continued service as Counsel for the

O fice of Professional Responsibility ultimtely wll be neither
to your own benefit nor to that of the Departnment of Justi ce.

Si ncerely,

/s/ Janmes P. Scanl an

Janes P. Scanl an

’ You might also attempt to find out why the original of the document seems now
to be missing from Independent Counsel files. See my letter to Mr. Bromwich at 74-75.
Whether it is missing or not, however, you will have to conclude that it is not what
Independent Counsel attorneys represented it to be.



H. Marshall Jarrett, Esq.
November 9, 1998
Page 13

Attachnents



